




APPROVAL NOT REQUIRED CASE NO. 2024-07 

APPLICANT: BREWSTER CONSERVATION TRUST 

OWNER: DAVID DALGARN 

PROPERTY: 3571 MAIN STREET (MAP 114 PARCEL 60 

AND MAP 126 PARCELS 4,5,9) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  
 

Date: April 18, 2024 
To: Planning Board  
From: Town Planner 
Re: Approval Not Required Plan Endorsement: PB#2024-7  

Owner: David S. Dalgarn  
Applicant: David S. Dalgarn & Brewster Conservation Trust (“BCT”) 
3571 Main Street (Map 114 Parcel 60; Map 126 Parcels 4, 5 & 9) 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Staff Recommendation 
Vote to endorse the plan entitled “Plan of Division of Land for Property at 3571 Main Street, Brewster, 
MA, 02631, Prepared for David S. Dalgarn & Brewster Conservation Trust,” made by Soule Land 
Surveying, Brewster, MA, dated April 10, 2023, stamped by Peter W. Soule, PLS, as the plan does not 
depict a subdivision and thus does not require approval under the subdivision control law. 
 
Discussion 
The subject land is referred to locally as the “Washington Chase bog property.”  The late Mr. Chase, 
known as “Washie,” was a life-long Brewster native, operated the bogs, and ran a campground on the 
property (“The Woodlot”).  The current owner is his son-in-law.   The owner is under agreement to sell 
the land to BCT and they have submitted a plan to the Board for endorsement which shows a division of 
the land into two lots.   There is currently a house on the land which would be located on “Lot 1.” A 
conservation restriction is proposed for “Lot 2,” which would be acquired by the Town with CPC funds 
pursuant to an article on this spring’s Town Meeting. 
 
The plan submitted to the Board is styled as an “Approval Not Required” (ANR) plan per MGL Ch. 41 ss. 
81L & 81P and Section 290-4 of the Brewster Subdivision Rules and Regulations; the owner/ applicant 
maintains that no subdivision approval is required for the land division because the plan does not depict a 
‘subdivision’ as defined under the subdivision control law, and requests endorsement of the same.   
 
In the case at hand, the proposed land division is not a subdivision so-defined and an ANR endorsement is 
warranted because each lot has the minimum required frontage under the Brewster Zoning Bylaw.  
 
The Board’s endorsement, however, does not itself imply zoning compliance or represent the zoning 
buildability of the lots; these zoning issues are beyond the scope and authority of the Board under a 
request for ANR endorsement.   
 

 

Town Of Brewster 
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, Massachusetts 02631-1898 
(508) 896-3701 x1150  

                                           

 

Office of: 
Planning Department 

 

 
 















 

SPECIAL PERMIT AND SITE PLAN REVIEW  
CASE NO. 2024-04 

APPLICANT/OWNER: THE FREE SEA TURTLE, LLC 
PAUL WALLACE, MANAGER 

PROPERTY: 162 UNDERPASS ROAD (MAP 77 PARCEL 9) 

 
AND 

 
SPECIAL PERMIT AND SITE PLAN REVIEW  

CASE NO. 2024-05 

APPLICANT/OWNER: 162 UNDERPASS LLC 
CHARLES WHITCOMB III, MANAGER 

PROPERTY: 0 UNDERPASS ROAD (MAP 77 PARCEL 

10&60) 

 

 

 

 

 

 



NO SUPPLEMENTAL 

DOCUMENTS RECEIVED  

 

PLEASE REFER TO  

APRIL 10, 2024 PACKET 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



DRAFT MEETING MINUTES DATED APRIL 10, 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
PB Minutes 04/10/24                               Page 1 of 5 

 

Brewster Planning Board 

2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 

(508) 896-3701 x1133 
brewplan@brewster-ma.gov 

MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, April 10, 2024 at 6:30 pm 

 Brewster Town Office Building  
 

Acting Chair Alex Wentworth convened a meeting of the Planning Board at 6:31 pm with the following members 
participating: Tony Freitas, Madalyn Hillis-Dineen, Rob Michaels, and Elizabeth Taylor.  Amanda Bebrin and Charlotte 
Degen were not present. Also participating: Jon Idman, Town Planner, and Lynn St. Cyr, Senior Department Assistant.  
Wentworth declared that a quorum of the Planning Board was present.  The Meeting Participation Statement and 
Recording Statement were read. 
 
6:32 PM PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS AND COMMENT 
None. 
 
6:33 PM PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Special Permit and Site Plan Review Case No. 2024-04: Applicant/Owner: The Free Sea Turtle, LLC, Paul Wallace, 
Manager, has applied for Site Plan Review under Brewster Zoning Bylaw Article XII for a new commercial development 
on an undeveloped lot, and a Special Permit under Brewster Zoning Bylaw Section 179-51 for uses including building and 
construction trade shop or garage and a full-service restaurant, at 162 Underpass Road (Tax Map 77 Parcel 9) located 
within the Commercial High Density (CH) Zoning District.  
 
Special Permit and Site Plan Review Case No. 2024-05: Applicant/Owner: 162 Underpass LLC, Charles Whitcomb  III, 
Manager, has applied for Site Plan Review under Brewster Zoning Bylaw Article XII for a new commercial development 
on an undeveloped lot, and a Special Permit under Brewster Zoning Bylaw Section 179-51 for uses including building and 
construction trade shop or garage and (1) accessory commercial  dwelling unit, at Underpass Road (Tax Map 77 Parcel 
10 and 60) located within the Commercial High Density (CH) Zoning District.   
Documents: 

 01/16/23 Building Plans (0 Underpass Road) 

 01/18/23 Staff Review Meeting Report 

 08/11/23 Staff Review Meeting Report 

 02/02/24 Proposed Dite & Sewage Disposal Plan for 0 Underpass Road 

 02/02/24 Grading - Drainage Details 

 02/05/24 Planning Board Applications 

 02/20/24 Landscape Plan (162 Underpass Road) 

 02/20/24 Landscape Plan (0 Underpass Road) 

 02/27/24 Email from Chris Miller, Natural Resources Department 

 03/01/24 Email from Charles Mawn, Police Department 

 03/01/24 Email from Robert Moran, Fire Department (162 Underpass Road) 

 03/01/24 Email from Robert Moran, Fire Department (0 Underpass Road) 

 03/04/24 Email from Sherrie McCullough, Health Department (0 Underpass Road) 

 03/05/24 Email from Sherrie McCullough, Health Department (162 Underpass Road) 

 03/07/24 Email from Victor Staley, Building Department 

 03/11/24 Email from William Grafton, Conservation Department (0 Underpass Road) 

 03/20/24 Building Plans (162 Underpass Road) 

 03/29/24 Proposed Sewage Disposal System Plan (162 Underpass Road) 

 03/29/24 Narrative 

Approved:  

Vote:  



 

 
PB Minutes 04/10/24                               Page 2 of 5 

 

 03/29/24 Proposed Site Plan with Drainage 

 03/29/24 Proposed Site Plan – Fire Truck Pathway Approach from North 

 03/29/24 Proposed Site Plan – Fire Truck Pathway Approach from South 

 03/29/24 Traffic Memorandum 

 04/02/24 Staff Reports 

 04/05/24 Email from Sherrie McCullough, Health Department 

 04/09/24 Email from Robert Moran, Fire Department 

 04/10/24 Email from Robert Moran, Fire Department 

 Lighting specifications for pole and wall mounted lights 
 

John O’Reilly, PE, PLS of J.M. O’Reilly & Associates, Inc. was present on behalf of the Applicants.  Applicants Paul Wallace 
and Charlie Whitcomb were also present.  O’Reilly stated that the plan has been revised since the stormwater 
management permit was issued but the stormwater design and layout have not changed.  O’Reilly stated that the 
applications relate to Lot 1 and Lot 2-3 and are located in the Commercial High Density Zoning District.  Lot 1 has one 
mixed use commercial building.  The building is a 2-story concrete foundation and steel building.  The building is 
approximately 4000 SF and will include a 75-seat restaurant and 2800 SF of retail/office space located in three units on 
the second floor. O’Reilly noted that it was a slab on grade design and the building will be built into the hillside.  There is 
an easement on the southside of the lots with the Town of Brewster.  He noted that the Eddy School is located nearby.  
The building is designed to build itself into the grade as it slopes from the south to the north.  O’Reilly stated that the 
building is designed to meet all zoning requirements.  The building is located 50’ off Underpass Road. It is 21’ off the 
southern property line and 152’ from the rear property line.  He stated that the building coverage is 9.1% and is served 
by a subsurface sewer system which is fully compliant with Title 5.  The system is located on the northside of the 
building underneath the parking lot.  The building is surrounded by patio space which will be used by the restaurant.  
O’Reilly stated that there is a sidewalk proposed along Underpass Road which will tie into the sidewalk on the southside 
of the parking lot.  The sidewalk will also tie into the southside of the building and serve as the main entrance to the 
second-floor units.  O’Reilly stated that proposed uses for the second-floor units are listed in the project narrative.  The 
application is for site plan review and a special permit for a full-service restaurant on Lot 1.  O’Reilly stated that there are 
38 parking spaces proposed to serve the building.  27 spaces are dedicated to the restaurant with the remaining 11 
spaces to be used for the office/retail space.  There are 33 spaces on Lot 1.  He stated that parking will be shared 
between the two lots so there is sufficient parking provided overall. 
 
O’Reilly stated that the application for the Whitcomb property (Lot 2-3) proposes a 5000 SF contractor bay building with 
five bays.  A two-bedroom security apartment is also proposed on the west side of the building for total building size of 
5444 SF.  O’Reilly stated that the total building coverage is 8.3%. The lot is 64990 SF of upland.  O’Reilly stated that the 
building is fully compliant with zoning. He stated that the building is about 70’ off Underpass Road, 48’ to the sideline 
setback between the two lots, and 54’ to the rear property line.  O’Reilly stated that there are 12 spaces proposed for 
the uses on Lot 2-3.  He further stated that the required number of spaces between the properties is 50 and 55 spaces 
are provided with three being handicapped spaces. O’Reilly stated that six of the 55 spaces are proposed as employee 
parking for the properties and are located at the back side of Lot 1 on Lot 2-3.  
 
O’Reilly reviewed lighting for both applications and stated that there will be overhead downcast lights at all entrances to 
the building and at the garage doors in the contractor bay building.  There are two pole lights proposed in the island 
between the two buildings to be mounted on a 15’ tall pole.  O’Reilly stated that lighting specs have been provided and 
show that the lights are dark sky compliant.  O’Reilly also stated that a bicycle rack is provided on Lot 1.  The trash for 
both properties will be located at the rear of Lot 2-3 and consist of two dumpsters fenced in.  The projects received 
stormwater approval and O’Reilly stated that the stormwater system is designed in accordance with the Massachusetts 
Stormwater Handbook and the Brewster Stormwater Bylaw. O’Reilly stated that landscaping plans have been provided 
for both properties and a total of eight new trees are proposed.  He stated that both septic systems are fully compliant 
with Title 5 and a denitrification system or IA system is being provided on Lot 1.  O’Reilly stated that the properties are 
served by town water.  There are two hydrants currently proposed.  O’Reilly also noted that a traffic memorandum has 



 

 
PB Minutes 04/10/24                               Page 3 of 5 

 

been provided with the applications.  He stated that he believes both applications are compliant with the site plan 
review guidelines and zoning in the Town of Brewster.  Wallace noted that it is possible that two large oak trees located 
in the southern corner will need to be removed. 
 
Taylor asked if the total seat capacity of 75 was for seating both inside and outside. Wallace stated that it was his 
understanding that the 75-seat capacity included all seats being served by a server. He further stated that if customers 
are not being served by a server, they are not included in the 75-seat capacity.   Taylor asked the status of the swept 
path analysis.  O’Reilly stated that he believes the swept path analysis is compliant but further discussion is needed with 
the Fire Chief.  Taylor asked if there are any lights on the contractor bay building facing the conservation land.  O’Reilly 
stated that there are sconce lights above the doors for security purposes and they would be downward casting.  O’Reilly 
confirmed that there will be no spotlights or motion detecting lights facing the conservation land. 
 
Michaels asked if the Applicant would add more bike storage and Wallace responded that he would expand the size of 
the current bike rack.  Michaels asked if charging stations for electric bikes and cars were considered.  Wallace stated at 
this time charging stations are not proposed. Michaels stated that he visited the properties and heard the school 
children while he was there.  He wondered if more screening for sound could be added to the area that faces the Eddy 
School.  O’Reilly responded that the Applicants did not intend to add fencing to that area and wondered if there were 
requirements in the bylaw related to sound as he is not familiar with them.  Michaels responded that he thought more 
screening could help because the moving of equipment could be disruptive to the school.  Wallace stated that there was 
already a significant amount of tree cover in that area so he’s not sure planting more trees would help. 
 
Hillis-Dineen expressed concern about comments from the Fire Department and would like to see the Applicants work 
with the Fire Chief specifically on the swept path analysis.  Hillis-Dineen also asked for clarification on the seating 
capacity for the restaurant.  Wallace stated that it will not be his restaurant so there are not specifics to provide yet but 
that the restaurant will be reviewed by the Board of Health.  Hillis-Dineen appreciated the proposed housing.  O’Reilly 
asked about the concern surrounding the seating capacity and Hillis-Dineen responded that she was concerned about 
how many people may be there at one time.  O’Reilly clarified that after Planning Board review but prior to a building 
permit issuing, the restaurant will go through review by the Board of Health and that is when seating and operation will 
be discussed. 
 
Freitas asked for clarification on comments received by the Building Commissioner regarding exclusive uses.  Idman 
stated that the projects have been revised since the Building Commissioner provided his comments which related to row 
commercial uses being mutually exclusive from building construction and trade uses.  The uses are now proposed on 
two separate lots, so the comment does not apply. Wallace stated that the first proposal reviewed by staff included a 
restaurant and additional units in the same building.  Freitas asked about the types of construction vehicles that would 
be on site as he was concerned about the interaction between construction and restaurant vehicles.  Wallace stated that 
he will coordinate the parking with Whitcomb.  O’Reilly clarified the driving route for construction vehicles entering the 
properties.  O’Reilly noted that most of the bays will be used in the early morning hours by tradesmen picking up 
supplies and tools and heading off site or they will be staying at the unit to work.  He does not believe the height of the 
restaurant traffic will coincide with traffic from the contractor bays.  Freitas suggested directional signage to help with 
traffic flow. 
 
Wentworth asked about easements and Wallace stated that the Applicants were working with an attorney on the 
necessary easements.  Wentworth asked for clarification on signage.  Idman stated that Whitcomb would need an 
easement for the sign on Wallace’s property.  Wallace stated that the stormwater permit issued by the Planning Board 
would be recorded at the Registry of Deeds. Wentworth asked for clarification on the loading area associated with the 
restaurant.  Wallace explained that a loading area was proposed on the eastside of the lot in the southeast corner. 
Wentworth confirmed with the Applicant that there was enough depth in the loading area for a food services truck.  
Wallace pointed out the fenced in area which contained the freezer.  Idman confirmed with the Applicant that the 
loading space would be sufficient for use by tenants in the units above the restaurant.  Wallace stated that he does not 



 

 
PB Minutes 04/10/24                               Page 4 of 5 

 

anticipate heavy equipment use or large deliveries for tenants of the upper units.  Wentworth asked about stairs to the 
second-floor units.  Wallace stated that the patio stairs would be used to access the second-floor units.  Wentworth 
expressed concern about ADA access to the upper units.  Wallace responded that an ADA compliant ramp is proposed.  
O’Reilly stated that there are steps currently shown on the plan that will need to be transitioned to ramps. 
 
Wentworth asked about Lot 2-3 and the number of businesses and bays proposed.  Wallace responded that there are 
four businesses proposed for the five bays.  He further stated that it was not unusual for one business to use two bays.  
Whitcomb stated that he will have four businesses in the bays.  Idman stated that the Planning Board could include a 
condition in the decision that there be no more than four businesses in the five bays.  Wentworth asked about the 
storage of materials on the site and stated that there was debate as to whether it was an allowed use.  Wallace stated 
that the use was a continued use from the prior owner.  Whitcomb stated he would like to continue to use the bins and 
keep them where they are currently located.  O’Reilly stated that he believed keeping materials associated with your 
business was allowed within the same lot so long as you were not selling materials. Wentworth asked about the six 
parking spaces located by the storage bins.  He stated that parking would not be suitable for that area if materials were 
also being removed from the bins. Wentworth asked the Applicants if it was possible to shift the spaces down.  Wallace 
did not think parking by the bins would be an issue because those using the bins would be familiar with the set up.  
Wentworth suggested signage stating that those spaces were for employee parking.  The Applicants agreed that the six 
parking spaces should be reserved for employee or tradesmen parking not for restaurant customers.  Whitcomb stated 
that he would be willing to add fencing around the bins.  Wentworth confirmed with the Applicants that the 
Conservation Commission had completed their review. 
 
Idman reviewed comments provided in the staff memo.  He mentioned sufficient buffering along Underpass Road.  He 
asked for clarification on evergreen buffering along the western property line with the Eddy School and noted that it 
does not appear on the landscape plan.  O’Reilly stated that he will confirm what is proposed for the western property 
line with the landscape designer.  Idman stated that he does not believe site plan review standards are applicable here 
for noise as it is not the type of use that would have sustained noise.  Idman stated that clarification is still needed 
regarding the western part of the property as there are conflicts with the material storage, lack of detail on the 
equipment bin, and the nearby parking area.  He stated that the Fire Chief also raised concerns regarding the material 
bins and the nearby parking. Idman noted that the Planning Board had flexibility with the parking requirements.  The 
Applicants could remove some of the spaces near the material bins and still meet the parking policy.  Idman stated the 
northerly spaces could also be shifted south.  Idman stated that the Planning Board had site plan review and special 
permit jurisdiction.  The proposed uses are for construction trades and restaurant. The Planning Board may want to 
consider whether buffering such as a line of trees to the east of the parking spaces and materials bins is appropriate.  
Idman asked for additional detail on what was being stored in the equipment bins. Whitcomb responded that storage 
would include a mini-excavator and trucks.  O’Reilly stated that the Applicants will map out the type of equipment and 
materials anticipated to be stored on site.  There was additional discussion on screening between the proposed uses. 
 
Wallace described the architecture and construction of the restaurant building.  He stated that it was not intended to be 
a standard corrugated steel building.  There will be wood siding in some areas to make it look more modern.  Idman 
suggested more information be provided on the construction and design of the building.  Wallace referred the Planning 
Board to the building plans he submitted and pointed out where the wood siding would be as well as several windows.  
Idman asked O’Reilly to follow up with the Fire Department on comments received regarding access around the 
contractor bay building and needing 25’ to the south of the restaurant building.  There was additional discussion on 
buffering of noise from machinery and visual buffering from the material bins on Lot 2-3.  The Applicants stated that 
they will work on the buffering and update the landscape plan. 
 
Michaels asked about the transportation demand management program referenced in the traffic analysis.  Idman stated 
that the TDM would include information on available bus routes and encourage biking.  He stated that a condition of the 
decision could be to provide a TDM to staff for review.  Wallace directed Michaels to the traffic memorandum dated 
March 29, 2024 which provided information on the program. 



 

 
PB Minutes 04/10/24                               Page 5 of 5 

 

Wentworth asked if the Applicant would need to return to the Planning Board once more information was available on 
the restaurant.  Idman responded that further review of the restaurant by the Planning Board would not be needed.  He 
explained that the Applicant is seeking a special permit for a full-service restaurant which would also allow a component 
of the limited-service restaurant such as take out sales at one counter.  Idman stated that more clarification is needed 
on the number of outside tables which will not have waited service.  Idman stated that if the restaurant plan changes 
and the restaurant becomes entirely limited service than the Applicant would need to return for a special permit.  There 
is also additional Board of Health review needed for the restaurant.  Idman noted that the transportation analysis used a 
limited-service type restaurant so if changes were made to the restaurant model it would not change the traffic analysis.  
Wallace stated that the traffic analysis did result in suggestions to move the driveway to the south and proposed the 
location for the crosswalk.  O’Reilly noted trimming and signage recommended because of the traffic analysis.  There 
was discussion on the proposed removal of oak trees along the shoulder.  Taylor asked about the plantings on either 
side of the driveway and suggested that they be easily trimmable to prevent line of sight issues. The location of the 
proposed crosswalk was discussed as well as permitting through DPW and coordination with the Water Department. 
 
O’Reilly summarized additional information requested by the Planning Board including detail on the shrubbery at the 
entrance, the addition of screening to the Eddy School, addressing all Fire Department comments including access 
around the site and to the building, providing another bike rack or expanding the proposed bike rack, potential for 
charging stations, showing all proposed landscaping on the landscape plan, detail on additional signage for the lots, 
signage and proposed screening between the two buildings, required cross easements, detail on delivery and loading 
area, access to the rear bays and potential changes to parking, and details on the equipment and materials that will be 
stored on Lot 2-3.  
 
Motion by Michaels to Continue Special Permit and Site Plan Review Case No. 2024-04 and Special Permit and Site 
Plan Review Case No. 2024-05 to April 24, 2024.  Second by Hillis-Dineen.  Vote 5-0-0. 
 
7:42 PM APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 
Approval of Meeting Minutes:  March 27, 2024. 
The Board reviewed the March 27, 2024 meeting minutes.  Motion by Michaels to Approve March 27, 2024 Meeting 
Minutes.  Second by Hillis-Dineen. Vote: 5-0-0. 
 
7:42 PM COMMITTEE REPORTS 
Freitas reported on a recent meeting of the Affordable Housing Trust including an update of the closing on the Yankee 
Drive property and the Housing 101 session being offered through the Housing Office.  Freitas also mentioned the Books 
and Big Ideas reading program being offered through the library which kicks off with a focus on housing. 
 
7:45 PM FOR YOUR INFORMATION 
The Planning Board received a public hearing notice from the Harwich Planning Board for April 23, 2024. 
 
7:45 PM MATTERS NOT REASONABLY ANTICIPATED BY THE CHAIR 
None. 
 
Motion by Hillis-Dineen to Adjourn.  Second by Michaels.   Vote: 5-0-0.  The meeting adjourned at 7:46 PM.  
 
Next Planning Board Meeting Date: April 24, 2024. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Lynn St. Cyr, Senior Department Assistant, Planning 



FOR YOUR INFORMATION 






	Agenda, 4/24/24
	ANR Case No. 2024-07
	SP and SPR Case Nos. 2024-04 and 2024-05
	Draft Minutes dated 04/10/24
	FYI

